1: 33: 07 PM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair

Thonpson

HOUSE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 11, 2015
1:33 p. m

called the House Finance

nmeeting to order at 1:33 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative
Representati ve
Representati ve
Representative

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Pat Pitney,

D rector,

Mar k Neuman, Co-Chair
St eve Thonpson, Co-Chair
Dan Saddl er, Vice-Chair
Bryce Edgnon

Les Gara

Lynn Gattis

David Guttenberg

Scott Kawasaki

Cat hy Munoz

Lance Pruitt

Tamm e W1 son

Ofice of Managenent

Ofice of the Governor

SUMVARY

HB 71

HB 71 was HEARD and HELD in committee for

BUDGET: CAPI TAL

consi derati on.

#hb71
HOUSE BI LL NO.

71

"An Act

appropriations

House Fi nance Committee 1

maki ng appropriations,

and ot her

i ncl udi ng
appropri ati ons;

Committee

and Budget,

further

capita
maki ng

02/11/15 1:33 P.M



appropriations to capitalize funds; and providing for
an effective date."

1: 33: 56 PM

PAT PITNEY, DI RECTOR, OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDCET,
OFFI CE OF THE GOVERNOR, addressed capital project summaries
for all departnents printed in green (copy on file). She
expl ai ned that the packet only included itens added by the
adm ni stration as amendnents to HB 71

Co- Chair Thonpson asked nenbers to hold questions until the
end of the presentation.

Ms. Pitney began with a $3 mllion deferred maintenance,
renewal , repair, and equipnent increment for the Departnent
of Admnistration on page 1. The increnent included
projects for the Public Building Fund (PBF). The packet
enconpassed four deferred nmaintenance, renewal , and
repl acenent proj ects. She detail ed t hat deferred

mai nt enance requests were significantly less than in prior
years. The adm nistration ained to keep providing a snal
anount of noney for deferred mai ntenance. She highlighted a
listing of projects the $3 million increnent would fund on
page 3. She turned to a $15 mllion request for the Al aska
Energy Authority (AEA) Renewabl e Energy Fund on page 4. She
explained that the Renewable Energy Fund had been
capitalized in the operating budget. The increnent would
provide the capital project authority to use the fund for
the Renewable Energy Gant Recomendation Program The
funding was smaller than it had been in the past; the
projects included had a good return on investnment going
forward

Ms. Pitney noved to a reappropriation to the Alternative
Energy and Energy Efficiency Prograns on page 6. She noted
that pages 9 and 11 included additional reappropriations
fromthe sanme project (Munt Spurr Ceothermal Project). The
project had stalled for various reasons, primarily because
the cost relative to the benefit nmade it |less feasible for
the private conmpany that had been noving the project
forward. The reappropriation on page 6 was $2.2 nillion
t hrough AEA.

1: 38: 11 PM

House Fi nance Committee 2 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



Ms. Pitney addressed a $1.070 mllion increnent for a Kake
Rural Power System Upgrade Project on page 8. The increnent
would allow a few of the rural power system projects to
continue forward. Page 9 included the Port Heiden Rural
Power System Upgrade Project that was not to exceed $4
mllion (funded by the sane reappropriation from Mount
Spurr). Page 10 included the Tuluksak Bulk Fuel Upgrade,
which was not to exceed $3.9 million (also funded by the
Mount Spurr pr oj ect reappropriation). The | ast AEA
reappropriation from the Munt Spurr project was for the
El ectrical Emergencies Program in the amount of $330, 000.
Page 13 included a reappropriation of $10 mllion with a
net increase of $3.4 nmillion for projects related to the
Education Deferred Maintenance Fund. She relayed that the
project was one of the four deferred nmintenance conponents
in the package.

Ms. Pitney remarked on page 15 that included a continuation
of school deferred mai ntenance projects. Page 17 included a
$500, 000 shooting range deferred nmintenance request for
the Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR); $375,000 was
federally funded and $125, 000 was funded with fish and gane
recei pts. Page 19 included a snall anmount of funding for
Al aska's Arctic Policy |eadership to take advantage of the
U S. chairmanship of the Arctic Council that began in the
present year and continued into the following year. She
relayed that there was a short tineframe in which to take
advant age of the council chairmanship. She stated that the
goal was to put Alaska's policy priorities at the top of
the agenda for the U S. chairmanship in conjunction wth
the legislative Arctic Policy Comm ssion that had done
excellent work in the past several years to help devel op
pol i ci es.

1: 41: 43 PM

V5. Pitney advanced to page 21 that included a
reappropriation for the Al aska Vocational Technical Center
(AVTEC) information technology systenms and equipnent. She
detailed that there was an unexpended bal ance of $530, 000
from a dormtory replacenent. Page 23 included a DNR
request for $1 mllion from the Exxon Valdez GO Spill
Trustee Council. Funds would be wused to purchase a
subsurface estate and occupancy agreenent for Northern
Af ognak Island. Page 25 included funding in the anount of
$800, 000 ($400,000 general funds and a $400,000 federal
match) to inplement and populate a statew de energy

House Fi nance Conmmittee 3 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



dat abase. The database would help wth devel opnent and
woul d take advantage of the federal matching funds. Page 28
i ncluded a $500,000 request from DNR to upgrade and repair
exi sting volcano nonitoring equipnent. The equi prent woul d
be used for volcanic activity and to alert flights from
flying through nearby airspace in the event of an eruption.

1:44:19 PM

MVs. Pi t ney addr essed page 31 t hat i ncl uded a
reappropriation of $1 nmillion from DNR shale oil
environnental data to DNR unified permt autonmation and
docunent managenent. She communi cated that the project had
been in existence for several years. The status and
progress was shown on pages 31 through 34. She turned to an
$850, 000 request from the Department of Public Safety (DPS)
for the Al aska Donmestic Violence and Sexual Assault
Intervention Program to be funded by the Permanent Fund
Dividend Criminal Fund. Page 36 included a $2 nillion DPS
increnment for rental assistance for victins funded with the
Per manent Fund Dividend Crimnal Fund. Page 38 contained a
$350, 000 reappropriation from DPS video arraignnments to
t rooper video equi pnent and storage.

Ms. Pitney turned to a $4.6 million request fromthe Al aska
Housi ng Fi nance Corporation (AHFC) Dividend Program for two
housi ng prograns (page 40). She detailed that $3.6 mllion
would fund the AHFC Teacher, Health Professional, and
Public Safety Housing Program The remaining $1 mllion
would go to housing for Village Public Safety Oficers
(VPSO) (detail was included on page 45). The anobunt was
slightly reduced from the past several years. Page 47
included an $11.1 nillion increment for AHFC energy
prograns; the amount was significantly below prior year
requests. The item proposed the use of several funding
sources including $3 mllion from AHFC dividends, $1.5
mllion in federal receipts, and $6.6 mllion in genera
funds. She relayed that the funds would keep two prograns
nmoving. First, the AHFC Wat heri zation Program was detail ed
on page 49. Second, the AHFC Home Energy Rebate Program was
detailed on page 51. She noted that both requests were
significantly smaller than in prior years. She added that
prior year funding would continue as well, which would keep
the prograns robust in the upcomng fiscal year. However, a
simlar low investnent would change the nature of the
programin a future fiscal year.

House Fi nance Committee 4 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



1:49: 09 PM

Ms. Pitney advanced to an increnent on page 54 for the AHFC
Cold Cimte Housing Research Center. She noted that the
program had previously been called Energy Efficiency
Monitoring; the appropriation was simlar to past years.
She addressed a Departnment of Transportation and Public
Facilities (DOT) request on page 56 in the anpbunt of $29.6
mllion for fleet replacenent. Funding was nade up of $5
mllion in Capital |nprovenent Project Receipts and $24.6
mllion in H ghway Capital Funds (a DOT fund that allowed
for replacenent of various heavy equipnment and vehicles
that had reached the end of their useful |ifecycle).

She turned to page 60 that included an $8 mllion deferred
mai nt enance request from DOT; t he i ncrement was
significantly lower than prior year appropriations. The
funding would allow for the continuation of the programat a
limted basi s. Page 61 i ncl uded a $12 mllion
reappropriation for the Alaska Mrine Hi ghway System (AVHS)
annual nai ntenance program Funds woul d be appropriated out
of a $22 mllion increment funded to the Al aska Aerospace
Corporation for construction of a mediumlift launch pad in
2012. She detailed that the nmaintenance program had
traditionally been funded in the capital budget. She noted
that the itens could easily be separated; there could be a
repeal of the $22 million and a $12 mllion request could be
made for AVHS. She stated that the inportant thing was that
t he annual mai nt enance get done.

1: 52: 53 PM

Ms. Pitney addressed page 64 that included an $8 mllion
increnment for another year of work on the University of
Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) engineer building. The total funding
needed to finish the building was $31.3 million. She
expl ained that the walls and floors had been installed. She
remar ked that the project funding had been pieceneal ed over
t he past several years. The final request was an $8 nillion
increnent for University of Alaska deferred naintenance
(page 65). She relayed that the increment was small
relative to prior years; funds would keep the program
nmoving, but at a limted basis.

Representative Kawasaki recalled that the commttee had
been told the prior year that if all of the noney was not
put into the UAF engineering building that construction
woul d stop in April 2015. He wondered about the total cost

House Fi nance Conmmittee 5 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



to finish the building if it was conpleted in one year and
what $8 million woul d achi eve.

Ms. Pitney replied that the total anmount needed was $31.3
mllion. She shared that $8 mllion would pay to conplete
the floor wwth | abs; the goal was to achi eve usabl e space.

Co-Chair Thonpson believed the increment included funding
to connect the facility wth another building. M. Pitney
replied that the new building had connected the old
engi neering building and the business building. She noted
that the entryway that connected the two buil dings was part
of getting the building walls up.

Representative Kawasaki wondered if the $31.3 mnillion
represented current dollars. He asked what it would cost in
the future if the full amount was not appropriated. M.
Pitney replied that $31.3 mllion was slightly above what
it would have cost if the project had been funded in full
the prior year (between $2.5 million to $3 mllion). Every
nmonth the project was delayed represented an additional
cost .

Representati ve Kawasaki asked for verification that the
added cost was $2 nillion to $3 mllion. M. Pitney
responded in the affirmative. Representative Kawasaki asked
if the increases would occur annually. M. Pitney replied
that the increases would be |ess each year because the
unfunded total would be reduced.

Representative Gara believed there was usually $9 mllion
or $10 million for honeless shelters in the capital budget.
He noted that the funds also |everaged federal funds. He
asked where the funds were.

1:58: 12 PM

Ms. Pitney answered that the absence of the funds related
to an unintended consequence of a stripped down capital
budget. The adnministration intended to address the itemin
the near-term

Representative Gara pointed to the reappropriation of $12
mllion to AVHS from $22 mllion previously designated for
the Al aska Aerospace Corporation (page 61). He wondered
what the remaining $10 million would be used for. M.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 6 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



Pitney directed attention to page 13 [funding would go to
school district nmajor maintenance grants].

Representative WIlson remarked that several of the projects
listed on page 13 had already been conpleted. She wondered
if it was normal to pay back a school district after it had
done a capital project. She could not remenber a tine when
t hat had happened; it had never occurred in Fairbanks.

Ms. Pitney would get back to the conmttee with an answer.

Representative WIlson referred to the increnent on page 19
for the governor's advisor on the Arctic. She thought the
$500, 000 i ncrenent appeared to be an operating expense. She
wondered why the increment was included in the capital
budget instead of the operating budget.

Ms. Pitney responded that the request was a one-tine
i ncr enment to t ake advant age of t he u. S Arctic
chai rmanshi p. She stated that the decision to include the
itemin the capital budget had been a choice; it could have
been in the operating budget as well. She would be happy to
have the increnent included in either budget.

Representative W/Ison believed the increment would be nore
appropriate in the operating budget. She |ooked at a
reappropriation for troopers on page 38. She wondered if
there were sufficient funds in the budget to maintain the
equi pnent. She wondered if the maintenance funds were in
t he current operating budget.

Ms. Pitney replied that the concept of equipnent and
information technol ogy refresh was a constant struggle with
agencies. Choosing to have upgraded equipnment had to be
bal anced with the knowledge that the equipnent would
require replacenent and server support. The hope was that
upgraded equi pnent would reduce other costs, but it was a
constant struggle and bal ance that woul d be wei ghed agai nst
ot her operating obligations. The use of a reappropriation
was due to a lack in operating funds. She added that
operating reductions in all agencies would necessitate
nmoving to reappropriations for upgrades in the future.

2:02: 36 PM

Representative WIson asked if the increment was for an
upgrade or for new equipnent for troopers who did not

House Fi nance Committee 7 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



currently have it. M. Pitney replied that the increnent
woul d fund new equipnment to replace a slightly different
technol ogy that was currently used by the agency.

Representative WIson believed that in the past the state
had been guilty of purchasing itens or constructing
buildings wthout considering how to pay for future
mai nt enance.

Representative Pruitt also remarked on the increnment on
page 38. He cited |anguage in the project description that
current in-car video systens were limted, antiquated, and
failing at an increasing rate. He wondered if the $350, 000
was sufficient for the purchase of the in-car systens, body
cameras, and storage of the data. He observed that severa
data storage servers would be repurposed, but he wondered
if it would be enough. He wondered if there would be
requests in the future to continue fundi ng the technol ogy.

Ms. Pitney would have DPS follow up with nore detail. She
reiterated that keeping up wth increased technology
demands whil e reducing agency operating budgets was al ways
going to be a struggle. She confirmed that there would be
addi tional equipnment and storage requests in the future
either as a separate request or in the form of a reduction
to another area in the DPS trooper budget. The item
represented a new operating need that was nore efficient
t han past practices.

Representative Pruitt noted that the increnent was only for
troopers. He wondered if there had been simlar requests
from | ocal police departnents. If so, he wondered why every
police departnment would have its own server or if they
would utilize the state's servers. He asked about costs to
the state associated with facilitating the service. He
asked Ms. Pitney to pass the question on to DPS. He noved
to page 23 related to a purchase of the Afognak |Island
surface estate. He noted that Parks and Recreation had done
a phenonenal job on limting costs to them by raising their
fees. He wondered if the state was required to fund the
associated costs. He believed it was a larger discussion
about how many tines sonething was purchased and then given
to the state, |l eaving the state responsible for
facilitating paynment. He noted that the practice occurred
quite a bit. He wondered about the overall costs to the
st at e.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 8 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



Ms. Pitney would follow up on the question.

Vice-Chair Saddler turned to a renewable energy grant
program on page 4. He referred to Ms. Pitney's testinony
that the return on investnent was high. He wondered what
the return had been for the program He asked about the
program s success in generating power for Al askans.

Ms. Pitney answered that she would follow up with the
committee. She did not know if the data was available for
the program as a whole, but there was significant
i nformati on avail abl e at an individual project |evel.

Co- Chair Thonpson asked for the information to be provided
to his office for distribution to commttee nenbers. M.
Pitney replied in the affirmative.

Vice-Chair Saddler remarked that the goal of renewable
energy was positive. However, he surmsed that |ocating
heating efficiencies and providing AHFC weat herizati on may
provide a nore direct application of limted funds. He
appreciated any information Ms. Pitney could provide.

2:08: 02 PM

Represent ati ve Kawasaki | ooked at a $400,000 request with a
$400, 000 federal match on page 25 for a statew de Cook
Inl et energy database. He observed that the project date
went through 2020. He wondered whether there would be
funding over the upcomng five years or if the increnent
woul d be spread out over the tine period.

Ms. Pitney would get back to the conmttee with an answer.

Representati ve Kawasaki referred to page 25 and noted that
positions were listed as existing. He wondered if the cost
was further reflected in the DNR budget. M. Pitney
answered in the affirmative. She elaborated that the fund
source would pay for the expertise of the particular
positions within DNR. She noted that if no project existed
necessitating the expertise it would require a reduction in
staffing.

Representative Kawasaki referred to t he ener gy
weat heri zation and rebate prograns. He commented that the
state was fortunate to invest $300 nillion into the

programs in 2008 or 2009. He noted that the nunber had

House Fi nance Conmmittee 9 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



subsequently been whittled down in the followi ng years. He
wondered what the total encunbrance was for the current
year. He wondered about the difference in the anticipated
funding versus actual funding in the current budget. M.
Pitney replied that there were balances in both prograns
fromprior years. The relatively small increnents requested
woul d continue the prograns at a simlar level to prior
years; however, the funds would be spent out in the comng
year. She detailed that either the progranms would be much
smaller in FY 17 if funds were not increased or a policy
decision wuld be required to reinstate funds at the
traditional level. The adm nistration's recomendati on was
to limt the funding to allow the prograns to run at their
current level and to nake a conscious decision about their
| evel of continuation in the FY 17 budget.

2:11: 10 PM

Representative WIlson referred to the renewable energy
project grants. She relayed that she had heard concerns
that the state was conpeting with private business using
state funds. She asked if the state used a systemto ensure
that it was not conpeting with entities that were privately
funding energy projects. Ms. Pitney replied that she would
foll ow up on the question.

Co-Chair Neuman thought there had been $10 mllion
appropriated into the capital budget to mtigate unforeseen
issues. Ms. Pitney replied that the line item was included
in the operating budget; it had been requested to provide
flexibility to cover itenms that may have been trimred too
far.

Co-Chair Neuman asked where the noney had cone from Ms.
Pitney replied that the total operating and capital budget

allocation was $5.5 billion in unrestricted general funds;
$2.2 billion would come from general revenue based on
$66/bbl oil. The remaining $3.5 billion would cone from
reserves.

Co- Chair Neuman restated his question. He agreed that there
should be sone funds available to cover unforeseen itens.
He wondered if the increment came from a prior capital
project fund. M. Pitney replied that no reappropriations
had been nade in the operating budget.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 10 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



Vice-Chair Saddler spoke to the $2 mllion increnment for
transitional housing for victins of donmestic violence and
sexual assault (page 36). He observed that there were a
wi de range of state funded prograns offering assistance for

housi ng. He wondered if the $2 mllion increnent
represented a small or large portion of the overall housing
assi stance funding. Ms. Pitney answered that the $2 nmllion

increnent was the only housing assistance request that
focused on victins of violent crinmes and sexual assault.
There were additional housing assistance requests for
teachers, VPSGs, and troopers. She conmunicated that in
prior years there had been a honel ess assi stance grant. She
relayed that the administration intended to offer a budget
amendnent to repair the wunanticipated reduction. The
operating budget included different assistance prograns
related to public assistance and behavioral health. She did
not have the detail on hand.

2:16: 46 PM

Vi ce-Chair Saddler wondered if individuals were prevented
from utilizing nore than one of the housing assistance
progranms. He observed that the program for victinms of
donmestic violence and sexual assault was limted to 36
months. He wanted to prevent "double dipping" or excess
capacity.

Ms. Pitney replied that the question provided an excellent
opportunity for her office to provide a matrix of the tine
l[imts and eligibility requirenents.

Representative GQuttenberg pointed to page 13 related to
school district major maintenance grants. He wondered if
the request included the summation of the four projects
listed. Ms. Pitney guessed there were over 50 on the Iist;
the page included the top 4 projects. Representative
Guttenberg asked for verification that the increment only
pertained to the 4 projects listed. Ms. Pitney replied in
the affirmative.

Vi ce-Chair Saddler |ooked at page 47 for the AHFC energy
prograns. He noted that past appropriations had been as
little as $2.6 mllion and as high as $51 mllion. He
observed that the admnistration projected an annual need
for $50 million for a period of five years. He believed the
cost was high. He wondered if there were other prograns in

House Fi nance Committee 11 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



the capital or operating budgets that may help reduce the
need for energy assistance.

Ms. Pitney replied that it was not the intent of the
adm ni stration to provi de annual $50 mllion
appropriations. She communicated that the office would
revise the information.

Representati ve Edgnon spoke to the weatherization and hone
energy rebate prograns. He believed funding for the
progranms would carry out until the end of FY 15. He thought
there was $29 mllion in the weatherization program and
less for the hone energy rebate program He surm sed that
the amount proposed in the governor's budget was a snall
anount of what would be ideal to keep particularly the
weat heri zation program going forward. He relayed that the
program had been very successful in rural Al aska because it
provi ded jobs, sealed up individual hones, and provided 30
to 40 percent cost savings. He stated that $8.1 mllion in
the weatherization program going forward barely kept the
program alive. He would like to see funds of $100 million
per year because only 10 to 12 percent of Al aska hones had
been weatherized. He nentioned his nenbership on the
advisory conmttee to the renewable energy grant program
He stated that the screening process was rigorous; he had
never heard of any projects being in direct conpetition
with a private entity. He spoke in support of the prograns
and appreciated that the governor kept sone funds in the
budget .

2:22: 37 PM

Co-Chair Thonpson referenced Representative Kawasaki's
earlier questions. He discussed that the previous year he
had | ooked at fund bal ances; the hone energy rebate had
been looked at as a potential place to save noney. He
stated that 1in actuality the nobney was there, but a
significant nunber of people had applied for the program
He detailed that applicants had up to 18 nonths to do the
repairs and could receive up to $10,000 depending on how
much work was done and the energy star rating they
achieved. He explained that funds needed to be kept in
reserve to pay the noney out over tine.

Representative WIson pointed to the AHFC Cold dimate

Housi ng Research Center increnent on page 54. She believed
the increnment |ooked |like an operating cost and observed

House Fi nance Committee 12 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



that the funding was projected through FY 21. She wondered
why it was not part of the regular AHFC budget. M. Pitney
woul d doubl e check on the increnent.

Co- Chair Thonpson noted that AHFC used the research center
nore than anyone else in the state. He added that there was
st at ewi de use.

Representative Quttenberg surm sed that part of the problem
was that the state was paying for projects and not
oper at i ons.

Vice-Chair Saddler pointed a $12 nmillion reappropriation
from the Al aska Aerospace Corporation to AVHS on page 61.
He wondered if there was an annual appropriation in the
operating budget for overhauls for AWVHS vessels. He
wondered if the $12 mllion reappropriation to AWVHS neant
there was $12 mllion "being squeezed into some other
expendi ture el se place.™

Ms. Pitney replied that the increment was a traditional
capital budget item but DOT viewed the need as operating.
She detailed that the $12 mllion went to the everyday
mai nt enance conducted to keep ships in good working order.
She relayed that DOT would be happy with the increnment in
operating budget, but it had traditionally been in the
capi tal budget.

Vice-Chair Saddler surmised that the reappropriation [from
the Al aska Aerospace Corporation] just happened to be where
the admnistration had located the funding for the FY 16
budget .

Ms. Pitney replied in the affirmative. She added that there
was sone interest to leave the increnent as a capital
budget item but the administration's primary interest was
to ensure the funding was provided in the budget sonmewhere.

2:26:41 PM

Representative Gara asked if the funding had traditionally
been $12 nmillion per year. M. Pitney pointed historical
funding listed on page 61. The annual paynment the prior
year had been $12 million, whereas it had been $10 million
the two years before, and $15 nmillion the year before that.

House Fi nance Conmmittee 13 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



Representative Gara surmsed that if the figure changed
annually it indicated that DOT was mneasuring the amount of
funds needed instead of asking for a fixed anount each
year.

Co- Chair Thonpson woul d ask the question during a DOl House
Fi nance Subcomm ttee neeting. He asked nenbers to provide
further questions for the adm nistration to his office.

HB 71 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

Co- Chair Thonpson discussed the schedule for the follow ng
day.

#
ADJ QURNVENT

2:28: 54 PM

The neeting was adjourned at 2:28 p. m

House Fi nance Committee 14 02/11/15 1:33 P. M



